
The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda. 

 
 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Friday, January 5, 2018 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 
2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Regular Business Meeting 
4. Public Comments 
5. Approval of Agenda 
6. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - December 19, 2017 (staff-CC) 
7. Request for Waiver of Interest from Sidney & Marta White (Tax Comm) 
8. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix D (Short 

Term Vacation Rentals) (AF) 
9. Approval of Revision to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority Appointment 

Procedures (staff-CC) 
10. Confirmation of Appointment to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority (staff-CC) 
11. Appointment to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC) 
12. Approval of Certification of Road Abandonment for Price Road (KI) 
13. Discussion and possible action concerning Solid Waste (SH) 
14. Discussion of a unification study by MGRC (SH) 

 
Reports/Announcements 
15. County Manager Report 
16. County Attorney Report 
17. Commissioner Announcements 

 
Closing 
18. Adjournment 

 
  

  

1



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
6. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - December 19, 2017 (staff-CC) 

 
 

 

  

2



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

December 19, 2017 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, December 19, 2017 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, December 19, 2017 at 

approximately 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Stephen Hersey 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Alan Foster 

Commissioner Trevor Addison 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

Assistant County Manager Lisa Jackson 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Hersey called the meeting to order at approximately 6:30 p.m. (Copy of agenda made 

a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Invocation 

The invocation was given by Pastor James Smith, Wesley Chapel United Methodist Church. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Hersey. 

 

 
 

 
 

3



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

December 19, 2017 

Road Abandonment Public Hearing 
4. Consideration of Road Abandonment - Price Road (KI) 

Chairman Hersey asked Vice Chairman Foster to take over the meeting because he signed in to 

speak on this issue. 

 

Chairman Hersey spoke against the abandonment of Price Road.  Upon conclusion of his 

comments, Vice Chairman Foster yielded the meeting back to Chairman Hersey. 

 

Mr. Andy Welch (also distributed documents), Mr. Chris Cepuran, DNR Officer Lynn Stanford 

Jr., and DNR Officer Bo Kelly all spoke in support of the abandonment of Price Road. (Copy of 

documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

 

No action was taken. 

 
Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 

Mr. Peter Crockett commented in support of leaving the convenience centers open.  Mr. Don 

Cottrell wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year from the Board of Assessors. 

 
6. Approval of Agenda 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to approve the 

agenda.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Foster, and Addison and Chairman 

Hersey voting yes. 

 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - December 1, 2017 Public Hearing and Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to approve the 

Consent Agenda.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Foster, and Addison voting 

yes and Chairman Hersey abstaining because he was not present at the December 1, 2017 

meeting. 

 
8. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Drug and Alcohol Policy Addendum (staff-

Transit) 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to authorize the 

Chairman to sign the GDOT Drug and Alcohol Policy Addendum.  Motion carried with 

Commissioners Irvin, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of 

addendum made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

4



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

December 19, 2017 

9. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix D 

(Short Term Vacation Rentals) (AF) 
Public comments were received from the following individuals: 

Mr. Chuck Ross – opposed to Alternate 1 and registration of rental property, no problem with 

paying hotel motel taxes (also submitted letter just prior to the meeting) 

Mr. Vince Maiello – needs to fair for Lake Sinclair as well as Lake Oconee 

Mr. Tom Anderson – in favor of Alternate 1 in regards to number of people allowed, need two 

exits per bedroom, concerned about how many bedrooms and how to determine what is a legal 

bedroom 

Ms. Sylbie Yon – in favor of limits for the number of occupants to the house, don’t make Putnam 

a “renters” designation, rentals shouldn’t be allowed in R-1R, make sure bedrooms are “legal” 

Ms. Jeanne Dufort – renting a house doesn’t necessarily make it a business, opposed to Alternate 

1 text regarding occupants, in agreement with excluding minor children from occupancy count, 

enforce nuisance rules, uniform enforcement throughout Putnam County 

 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Chairman Hersey, to approve changes 

to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances – Appendix D (Short Term Vacation Rentals) to 

include Alternate 1. 

 

 

Meeting recessed at approximately 8:35 p.m. 

Meeting reconvened at approximately 8:58 p.m. 

 

 

Motion by Commissioner Irvin, seconded by Chairman Hersey, to postpone this item until 

the next meeting.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin and Foster and Chairman 

Hersey voting yes and Commissioner Addison voting no. 

 

10. Consideration of ACCG-IRMA Firefighters' Cancer Benefit Program (staff-Finance & Fire) 
a. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution Authorizing Participation in the ACCG-

IRMA Supplemental Medical, Accident, and Disability Fund 
b. Authorization for Chairman to sign ACCG-IRMA Firefighter Cancer Coverage 

Application and Participation Agreement 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to authorize 

the Chairman to sign the Resolution authorizing participation in the ACCG-IRMA 

Supplemental Medical, Accident and Disability Fund and authorize the Chairman to sign 

the ACCG-IRMA Firefighter Cancer Coverage application and participation agreement.  

Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey 

voting yes. (Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ 

to __________.) 

 
11. Recommendation for Appointment to the Region 5 Emergency Medical Services Council 

(staff-CC) 

Motion by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to recommend Brad 

Murphey for appointment to the Region 5 Emergency Medical Services Council.  Motion 

carried with Commissioners Irvin, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

5



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

December 19, 2017 

 
12. Appointment to the Board of Health (staff-CC) 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, seconded by Chairman Hersey, to appoint Dr. 

Thomas Brown to the Board of Health.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Foster, 

and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. 

 
13. Approval of 2018 BOC Meeting Schedule (staff-CC) 

Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to approve the 

2018 BOC meeting schedule.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Foster, and 

Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of schedule made a part of the minutes on 

minute book page __________.) 

 
14. Approval of LMIG Projects (staff-CM) 
Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Irvin, to approve the 

LMIG Project List with two changes: remove Texas Chapel Road and add striping on 

Union Chapel Road from Highway 441 to Godfrey Road (District 1).  Motion carried with 

Commissioners Irvin, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of list 

made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 
15. Discussion and possible action on a Resolution in support of HR158 (SH) 
Motion made by Commissioner Foster, seconded by Commissioner Addison, to approve the 

Resolution in support of HR 158 and authorize the Chairman to sign.  Motion carried with 

Commissioners Irvin, Foster, and Addison and Chairman Hersey voting yes. (Copy of 

resolution made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
16. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reminded all that a Resolution was approved last March to request 

our Redevelopment Powers and this will go to General Assembly next year and if approved will 

also need to be approved by the voters; it will not be able to take effect until at least January 1, 

2019.  He also wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. 

 

17. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

6



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 5 of 5                                                                                     Approved 

December 19, 2017 

18. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner Irvin: commented that he has enjoyed working with everyone this year and has 

learned a lot and he wished all a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year 

 

Commissioner Brown: absent 

 

Commissioner Foster: announced that 12 brand new park grills were donated to the county by a 

local homeowner’s association 

 

Commissioner Addison: commented that he was honored to serve beside everyone this past year 

and he wished all a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year 

 

Chairman Hersey: commented “God bless us everyone” 

 
Closing 
19. Adjournment 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, seconded by Commissioner Foster, to adjourn the 

meeting.  Motion carried with Commissioners Irvin, Foster, and Addison and Chairman 

Hersey voting yes. 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 9:35 p.m. 

 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Stephen J. Hersey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

7



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
7. Request for Waiver of Interest from Sidney & Marta White (Tax Comm) 

  

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
8. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix D (Short 

Term Vacation Rentals) (AF) 

 

  

15



ORDINANCE  

 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING SHORT TERM VACATION RENTALS WITHIN 

THE UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF PUTNAM COUNTY 

 

 WHEREAS, the Putnam County Board of Commissioner’s (“Board”) recognizes 

the significant impact short term vacation rentals within the unincorporated areas of the 

County may have on limited public resources; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board wishes to provide for the health and safety of all 

individuals renting, offering for rent and residing adjacent and near to short term vacation 

rentals; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUTNAM 

COUNTY, GEORGIA, HEREBY ORDAIN as follows:  

 

SECTION 1: That Appendix D, Short Term Vacation Rental, is hereby included in the 

Code of Ordinances, Putnam County, Georgia and shall read as follows: 

 

Sec. 1. – Short Title  

 

 This ordinance shall be titled the “Putnam County Short Term Vacation Rental 

Ordinance.” 

 

Sec. 2. – Definitions 

 

For the purpose of this ordinance, the following terms, phrases, words and 

derivations shall have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, 

words used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural number include the 

singular number, and words in the singular number include the plural number. The word 

"shall" is always mandatory and not merely dicta. 

 

a. Short Term Vacation Rental.  Short term vacation rental means an 

accommodation for transient guests where, in exchange for compensation, a 

residential dwelling unit is provided for lodging for a period of time not to 

exceed 30 consecutive days.  Short term vacation rental shall not include any 

residential dwelling unit not regularly offered for rental, which shall be 

defined as any residence offered for rental less than 14 days in any given 

calendar year.  For the purposes of this definition, a residential dwelling shall 

include all housing types and shall exclude group living or other lodging uses.  

 

Sec. 3 – Regulations for short term vacation rentals. 

 

 Short term vacation rentals may be offered to the public for rental following 

issuance of a short term vacation rental certificate, receipt of an occupation tax 

certificate, and payment of any and all applicable state and county taxes.  Any taxes 

16



owed to the County as a result of any hotel motel tax shall be paid to the County Clerk 

and any failure to remit the same or to register pursuant to this Ordinance shall be subject 

to the penalties included in Section 54-38 of these Code of Ordinances.  Owners shall 

also insure occupants do not disrupt or interfere with rights of adjacent property owners 

to quiet enjoyment of their property and shall adhere to the following requirements: 

 

ORIGINAL TEXT: 

a. Owner shall not allow any gathering of persons at the short term vacation 

rental in excess of 2 more than the stated residential occupancy.   

 

b. Owner shall not allow occupants to cause excessive noise at the residence and 

shall maintain against any noise after 10:00 PM which is audible at a distance 

of 100 feet from the residence. 

 

c. Owners shall not allow occupants to park any vehicle on a public or private 

road or at any other location other than those areas specifically designated 

within the application for the short term vacation rental certificate. 

 

d. Owners shall not allow occupants to violate any federal, state, or local law, 

statute, rule or ordinances. 

 

ALTERNATE 1: 

a. At no time shall occupancy at the short term vacation rental be in excess of 2 

persons per bedroom and 2 additional individuals, excluding any minor child 

under the age of 12.  Such occupancy limit shall be conspicuously posted 

within the short term vacation rental.    

 

b. Owners shall not allow occupants to violate any federal state, or local law, 

statute, rule or ordinances, including, but not limited to, Sections 29-1 and 32-

20. 

 

ALTERNATE 2: 

a. Owners shall not allow occupants to violate any federal state, or local law, 

statute, rule or ordinances, including, but not limited to, Sections 29-1 and 32-

20. 

 

 

Sec. 4 – Application; fee. 

 

a. An application for a short term vacation rental certificate shall be submitted, 

under oath, on a form specified by the County Clerk, accompanied by a non-

refundable application fee Planning & Development Director, or their 

designee, accompanied by a $25.00 non-refundable application fee as set forth 

by the Board of Commissioners, which shall include at a minimum the 

following information or documentation: 

 

17



1. The name, address, telephone and email address of the owner(s) of 

record of the dwelling unit for which a certificate is sought.  If such 

owner is not a natural person, the application shall identify all partners, 

officers and/or directors of any such entity, including personal contact 

information; 

 

2. The address of the unit to be used as a short term vacation rental; 

 

3. The name, address, telephone number and email address of the short 

term vacation rental agent, which shall constitute his or her 24 hour 

contact information and who shall: 

 

a. Be reasonably available to handle any problems arising from 

use of the short term vacation rental unit; 

 

b. Appear on the premises within 24 hours following notification 

from the Planning and Development Director, or his/her 

designee, of issues related to the use or occupancy of the 

premises. including, but not limited to, complaints of 

unreasonable noise or disturbances, disorderly conduct, or 

other illegal activity. 

 

c. Receive and accept service of any notice of violation related to 

the use or occupancy of the premises; and 

 

d. Monitor the short term vacation rental unit for compliance with 

this chapter; 

 

4. The owner’s sworn acknowledgment that he or she has received a 

copy of this section, has reviewed it and understands its requirements; 

 

ORIGINAL TEXT: 

5. The owner’s designation of how many occupants may reside at the 

short term vacation rental; 

 

ALTERNATE 1: 

5. The number of bedrooms in the short term vacation rental; 

 

ALTERNATE 2: 

5.   The owner shall state the maximum occupancy for the residence, 

which shall be the same number as advertised and marketed to potential 

renters by or on behalf of the owner; 

 

6. The number and location of parking spaces allotted to the premises; 

 

 

18



 

7. The owner’s agreement to use his or her best efforts to assure that use 

of the premises by short term vacation rental occupants will not disrupt 

the neighborhood, and will not interfere with the rights of neighboring 

property owners to the quiet enjoyment of their properties;  

 

8. A copy of an exemplar agreement between the owner and occupant(s) 

which obligate the occupant to abide by all of the requirements of the 

chapter, and other Putnam County ordinances, state and federal law, 

and that such a violation of any of these rules may result in the 

immediate termination of the agreement and eviction from the 

premises, as well as potential liability for payment of fines levied;  

 

9. Proof of the owner’s current ownership of the short term vacation 

rental unit; and 

 

10. Proof of homeowner’s insurance;  

 

11. Any other information or documentation deemed necessary by the 

County Clerk of any other county department. 

 

b. Registration under this code section is not transferrable and should ownership 

of a short term vacation rental change, a new application is required, including 

application fee.  In the event of any other change in the information or facts 

provided in the application, the holder of the short term rental certificate shall 

amend the filed application without payment of any additional application fee. 

 

Sec. 5 – Review of application. 

 

Review of an application shall be conducted by the Planning and Development 

Director, or their designee, in accordance with due process principles and shall be 

granted unless the applicant fails to meet the conditions and requirements of this chapter, 

or otherwise fails to demonstrate the ability to comply with local, state, or federal laws.  

Any false statements or information provided in the application are grounds for 

revocation, suspension and/or imposition of penalties, including denial of future 

applications.  A certificate shall not be issued unless the owner demonstrates compliance 

with the applicable codes. 

 

Sec. 6 – Violations; revocation. 

 

a. In any instance in which use of the short term rental by a guest results in a 

violation of these ordinances, or any other ordinance of Putnam County, 

notice of such violation shall be provided to the short term vacation rental 

agent.  Upon notice of three violations within a period of 12 consecutive 

months, the Planning & Development Director shall revoke the short term 

vacation rental certificate and reject all applications for the subject premises 

19



for a period of 12 consecutive months.  Failure to remedy any notice of 

violations may result in the issuance of a citation, which shall be prosecuted 

pursuant to this Code.  Upon a conviction of violation, the Planning & 

Development Director may revoke the short term vacation rental certificate 

and reject all applications for the subject premises for a period of 12 

consecution months.  

 

b. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to limit any action by the Putnam 

County Health Department to seek the remediation of any dangerous 

condition at the short term vacation rental or to take any action seeking to 

protect and preserve against any threat to public safety. 

 

Sec. 7 – Appeal Rights. 

 

A person aggrieved by the Planning & Development Director’s decision to 

revoke, suspend or deny a short term vacation rental certificate may appeal the decision 

to the County Manager.  The appeal must be filed with the County Manager’s office in 

writing, within 30 calendar days after the adverse action and it shall contain a concise 

statement of the reasons for the appeal.  A decision from the County Manager shall be 

rendered within 5 business days of receipt of the appeal, and may hold any administrative 

hearing deemed necessary in consideration of the appeal. 

 

 

SECTION 2: That any ordinances or resolutions as adopted by this Board which are in 

conflict with these ordinances are hereby repealed and rendered ineffective. 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this ordinance has been duly adopted by the 

governing authority of Putnam County, Georgia on the ___ day of ___________, 2017.  

 

 

  

      _________________________ 

      Chairman 

 

 

 

 

20



CERTIFICATION 

 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of an original 

ordinance adopted by the Putnam County Board of Commissioners on the ____ day of 

______________, 2017. 

 

 In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand and affix the seal of Putnam County, 

this ____day of _______________, 2017. 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      County Clerk 

 

[Affix Seal] 

 

 

 

 

21



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
9. Approval of Revision to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority Appointment 

Procedures (staff-CC) 

  

22



Approved by PDA 03/28/2017; Approved by BOC 04/07/2017 

Putnam County’s Central Georgia Joint Development Authority Appointment Procedures 
 

In accordance with the bylaws of the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority (CGJDA), the Putnam 

County Board of Commissioners shall appoint four members to serve on the board of the CGJDA. During 

the initial appointment, the board will appoint two members to serve a two-year term and two members 

to serve a four-year term. Thereafter, the members shall be appointed for terms of four years. 

Members shall be selected in the following manner: 
(a) Two appointees shall be selected by the Putnam Development Authority from among the 

members of the Putnam Development Authority; these shall serve the initial two-year terms. 

(b) The Putnam County Board of Commissioners shall confirm the appointees of the Putnam 
Development Authority 

(c) The Putnam County Board of Commissioners shall also select two appointees under the 

procedures found in Section 2-53. Appointment procedures of the Putnam County Code of 

Ordinances. 

 
 

 Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Sec. 2-53. - Appointment procedures. 

 
Appointments to all boards, authorities, and commissions shall be conducted in accordance with the 

procedures contained in this section. 
 

(a) The county clerk shall cause to be published in the county's legal organ an advertisement 
announcing any vacancies at least 14 days prior to any appointment. 

(b) Following the appropriate advertising period, the county clerk, or designee, shall prepare and 
provide to the commission, a spreadsheet format list of all qualified candidates whose 
applications were received timely by the county clerk. 

(c) Immediately after the agenda item has been called, the clerk will verbally announce the qualified 
candidates and present their resume. A visually projected image of the spreadsheet prepared in 
subsection (b) above may be substituted. 

(d) For each vacant position, except as outlined in chapter 14-4(b) and 66-150(b), each commissioner 
may nominate anyone on the qualified list. Each nomination must receive a second to be 
considered for a later vote. While it is desirable to have each district represented on all county 
boards, authorities, and commissions as well as to have as much representation across the entire 
county and its constituents as possible, the greater need is to have interested, qualified, and 
responsible applicants who will provide the greatest contribution to Putnam County in carrying 
out the necessary functions of these boards, authorities, and commissions. All candidates who 
have received a nomination and a second can be discussed by the commissioners. Following 
discussion, a roll call vote will be taken. The proper response, to the call for a vote, is the name of 
the preferred candidate. The person receiving the majority vote of the commissioners will be the 
candidate selected. In those cases where there is not a tie and no one has received a majority 
vote, a second round of voting may be directed by the chairman. 

(e) No member of any board, authority, or commission shall be an employee of Putnam County as 
defined in Section I.D. of the Putnam County Personnel Manual. 

(Amend. of 9-15-2009; Amend. of 11-6-2009(1); Amend. of 11-30-2009(1); Amend. of 10-18-2011(1); Amend. 
of 3-1-2013) 

23



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
10. Confirmation of Appointment to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority (staff-CC) 

 
 

  

24



At their December 11, 2017 meeting, the PDA appointed Josh Daniel to 
the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority to replace Lynward 
Lindsey, who resigned effective December 31, 2017. 
 
 
The BOC will need to confirm the appointment.  

25



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 3                                                                                     Approved 

December 11, 2017 

 

 
117 Putnam Drive ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 ◊ Tel: 706-485-1884 

www.putnamdevelopmentauthority.com 

 
 

Minutes 

Monday, December 11, 2017 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 204 

 

The Putnam Development Authority met on Monday, December 11, 2017 at approximately 9:00 

AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 204, Eatonton, 

Georgia 

 

PRESENT 

Chairman Lynward Lindsey 

Member Joshua Daniel 

Member Bill Sharp 

Member Eugene Smith 

Member Ed Waggoner 

 

OTHERS PRESENT 

Attorney Kevin Brown 

Economic Development Director Terry Schwindler 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Lindsey called the meeting to order at approximately 9:01 a.m. (Copy of agenda made 

a part of the minutes.) 

 
Minutes 
2. Approval of Minutes - November 13, 2017 Regular Meeting 
Motion made by Member Sharp, seconded by Member Smith, to approve the minutes of 

the November 13, 2017 regular meeting.  Motion carried with Members Daniel, Sharp, 

Smith and Waggoner voting yes. 

 

Financials 
3. Approval of Financials - November 2017 
The November 2017 Financials were not available.  They will be added to the next agenda. 

No action taken. 

 

26



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 3                                                                                     Approved 

December 11, 2017 

Regular Business 
4. Presentation of Tri-County EMC Check (Greg Mullis, Kim Broun, Ray Grinberg) 

Mr. Greg Mullis and Ms. Kim Broun presented a check from Tri-County EMC in the amount of 

$5800 earmarked for economic development.  No action was taken. 

 
5. Carter & Sloope Sewer Study presentation (Claire Swaim) 

Ms. Claire Swaim of Carter & Sloope distributed copies of the South Industrial Park Sewer 

Study and maps.  She went over the objectives, existing capacities, options, and 

recommendations.  No action was taken. (Copy of study made a part of the minutes.) 

 
6. Update from the Rural Prosperity Summit (Andrew Simpson) 

Mr. Andrew Simpson with Eatonton Main Street attended the Rural Prosperity Summit and 

provided a report.  He advised that the current focus of the Rural Prosperity Committee is on 

South Georgia and that unless Putnam County is at the table, we will be forgotten.  Mr. Simpson 

was the only one there from our entire area.  They talked about the need for pad ready sites and 

high-speed internet; quality of life; workforce housing; educators being included in economic 

development; lack of health care; closing of rural hospitals; lack of qualified workers; and 

regionalism.  No action was taken. 

 
7. Discuss confidentiality - Kevin Brown (tabled from last meeting) 

Attorney Kevin Brown gave a recap on the Non-Disclosure Agreement (it’s basically an internal 

code of conduct amongst board members) and answered questions.   

Motion made by Member Smith, seconded by Member Waggoner, for all board members 

to sign the Non-Disclosure Agreement.  Motion carried with Members Daniel, Sharp, 

Smith, and Waggoner voting yes. (Copy of agreements made a part of the minutes.) 

 
8. Discuss new officer election for January meeting 

Chairman Lindsey explained the bylaws for officers and advised that elections will held at the 

January 2018 meeting.  Member Sharp introduced Mr. Jim Ryan who will be applying for the 

vacant PDA member position.  Mr. Ryan currently serves on the Board of Equalization.  No 

action was taken. 

 
9. Discuss replacement for the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority (CGJDA) 

Chairman Lindsey advised that since he has resigned from the PDA and CGJDA that a 

replacement needs to be appointed from the PDA board.   

Motion made by Member Smith, seconded by Member Sharp, that Josh Daniel be 

appointed to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority.  Motion carried with 

Members Daniel, Sharp, Smith, and Waggoner voting yes. 

 
10. Discuss 2018 meeting calendar - November Date Change 

Chairman Lindsey advised that the November meeting date needed to be changed due to the 

Veterans Day holiday. 

Motion made by Member Sharp, seconded by Member Waggoner, to approve the 2018 

PDA meeting calendar with one change: November meeting to be held on the second 

Tuesday, November 13th.  Motion carried with Members Daniel, Sharp, Smith, and 

Waggoner voting yes. (Copy of schedule made a part of the minutes.) 

27



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 3                                                                                     Approved 

December 11, 2017 

 
11. Update from Strategic Planning Committee - Film Subcommittee 

Member Sharp advised that he has arranged a meeting with Candice Scott, Senior Regional 

Project Manager for the Georgia Department of Economic Development.  She will present 

different facets of film making and what we need to be doing.  The meeting is tentatively 

scheduled for January 11, 2018.  All PDA members are welcome to attend as well as the 

members of the Film subcommittee of the Strategic Planning Committee.  No action was taken. 

 
Reports 
12. Economic Development Director Report - December 2017 
EDD Schwindler reported the following: (copy of report made a part of the minutes) 

• Website visitor sessions and pages viewed per session 

• Website analytics 

• Project status - 10 projects added 

• Projects by Industry - 7 Commercial/Retail, 3 Distribution 

• Project source – 3 local referrals, 2 existing industry, 5 direct 

• Company located – Lake Country Family Chiropractic 

• Company expanded – Michael’s Window Treatments 

• Company expanded – 44 Marketplace 

• Company relocated – Lake Oconee Antique Mall 

• Business & Industry contacts - 22 MTD, 250 YTD 

• Social media - 256 likes on Facebook, 42 followers on LinkedIn 

• Events attended and upcoming events 

• UFP Job Fair – November 15, 2017 – 30 job seekers 

• Basic Construction Skills course offered at CGTC beginning January 8th  

 

Other Business 
Member Sharp thanked Chairman Lindsey for his leadership and work on this board for the past 

10 years.  Chairman Lindsey commented that it’s been his pleasure and he looks forward to the 

future accomplishments of the PDA. 

 

Closing 
13. Adjournment 
Motion made by Member Smith, seconded by Member Daniel, to adjourn the meeting.  

Motion carried with Members Daniel, Sharp, Smith, and Waggoner voting yes. 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 10:53 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Lynward Lindsey 

County Clerk       Chairman 

28



29



30



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
11. Appointment to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC) 

  

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



Backup material for agenda item: 

 
12. Approval of Certification of Road Abandonment for Price Road (KI) 

  

38



CERTIFICATION BY  
PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF DETERMINATION REGARDING ABANDONING 

COUNTY ROAD AND DECLARATION OF ABANDONMENT 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Putnam County Board of Commissioners has determined that a section of the 
county road system, specifically, Price Road more particularly described on a plat of survey attached 
hereto as “Exhibit A” and made a part hereof, has ceased to be used by the public to the extent that no 
substantial public purpose is served by it; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing with respect to abandoning such public roads has been 
published once a week for a period of two weeks in The Eatonton Messenger which is the newspaper in 
which the sheriff’s advertisements for the county are published; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on December 19, 2017, a public hearing on such issue was held; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in accordance with the provisions of OCGA 32-7-2(b)(1), the Putnam County 
Board of Commissioners does hereby certify that it has determined that Price Road described on 
“Exhibit A” attached hereto has ceased to be used by the public to the extent that no substantial public 
purpose is served by it.  The Board does hereby direct the County Clerk to record said certification in the 
Board’s minutes, to provide said certification to the property owners located on the road described on 
said “Exhibit A”, and to publish notice of said certification in The Eatonton Messenger once a week for a 
period of two weeks. 
 
 The Board does hereby declare that Price Road described on said “Exhibit A” to be abandoned 
once the requirements of OCGA 32-7-2(b)(1) have been met.  Thereafter that portion of roads shall no 
longer be part of the county road system and the rights of the public in and to the portion of the roads 
as public roads shall cease. 
 
This 5th day of January 2018. 
 
 
PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
  
Stephen J. Hersey 
Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Lynn Butterworth 
County Clerk 

39



Exhibit A
40


	Top
	1. 20180105 BOC Welcome
	2. 20180105 BOC Invocation
	3. 20180105 BOC Pledge
	4. 20180105 BOC Public Comments
	5. 20180105 BOC Agenda Approval
	6. 20180105 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 12-19-17 BOC Minutes.pdf

	7. 20180105 BOC Interest Waiver Request-White
	Interest Waiver Request-White.pdf

	8. 20180105 BOC Appendix D
	Appendix D Short Term Vacation Rental Ordinance 010418.pdf

	9. 20180105 BOC CGJDA Appointment Procedures
	CGJDA Appointment Procedures proposed revision1.docx

	10. 20180105 BOC CGJDA Appointment
	CGJDA Appointment Note.pdf
	DRAFT 12-11-17 PDA Minutes.pdf
	CGJDA Appointment Confirmation.pdf

	11. 20180105 BOC PDA Appointment
	Putnam Development Authority Appointment.pdf

	12. 20180105 BOC Certification of Road Abandonment-Price Road
	Price Road Abaondonment Certification.docx
	Exhibit A-Price Road Certification of Abandonment.pdf

	13. 20180105 BOC Solid Waste
	14. 20180105 BOC Unification
	15. 20180105 BOC County Manager Report
	16. 20180105 BOC County Attorney Report
	17. 20180105 BOC Commissioner Announcements
	18. 20180105 BOC Adjourn
	Bottom

